THE IMPACT OF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF ENTREPRENEURS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF SMES IN DUBLIN, IRELAND.



SORBURAT OLOLADE OSENI

MASTERS IN ENTREPRENEURSHIP

SCHOOL OF BUSINESS

Submitted to National College of Ireland, August 2020

Abstract

Poor performance of SMEs occasioned by inadequate exposure to relevant training that would uplift their knowledge and skills needed for business growth is rising in Ireland. This menace of inadequate training has resulted in different business failures in the past. There has been dearth of recent literature on entrepreneurship training and performance of SMEs in Ireland and this study will no doubt fill this vacuum. This study therefore investigated the impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance in Dublin, Ireland. The methodology used was a cross-sectional survey, whereby data was collected once, and a mixed design was used in which both the quantitative and qualitative methods were utilized. The population of the study was the SMEs' operators in Ireland. The Microsoft forms format of online questionnaire was used, with a total of 50 responses gotten for the analysis. Two research hypotheses were tested, and three research questions answered in this study. There were both primary and secondary sources of data collection. The primary source was online questionnaire, while the secondary source was through research journals. Entrepreneurship training scale had a Cronbach's alpha reliability of 0.778, while the business performance scale had a reliability coefficient of 0.288; discriminant validity of the scale indicates that the entrepreneurship training scale and business performance scale had a value of -.263. The statistical tests that were applied in this study were One Way Analysis of Variance (One-way ANOVA), regression analysis, Pearson Product Moment Correlation (PPMC). The statistical package for the social sciences (SPSS) was used as the tool for the analysis. It was found that the most attained educational level of education of operators was SMEs was college degree with participants being 24 (48%). The most used method of entrepreneurship training is formal education, with mean of 6.167, standard deviation of 0.753 which is the highest in the series. That there was no significant relationship between entrepreneurship training and business performance among SMEs operators in Ireland (r = -.263, n = 50 p > .05). That the effect of Entrepreneurship training methods on the performance of SMEs among SMEs in Ireland was (R = .263 and R2 = .069 and adjusted R2 = .030, Fratio =1.777; P>0.05). Training will enable entrepreneurs to develop great capacity towards building sustainable relationship with customers; that training gives them more exposure to the workings and happenings in the industry; it gives them edge over the competitors. It was concluded that in order to ensure best practices in business, that would be globally acknowledged, the need to embrace training of the SME operators becomes crucial.

Submission of Thesis and Dissertation

National College of Ireland Research Students Declaration Form (Thesis/Author Declaration Form)

 Name:
 _____Sorburat Ololade Oseni

 Student Number:
 _____X19128924

 Degree for which thesis is submitted:
 _____MSc Entrepreneurship____

 Title of Thesis:
 _____Impact of training and development of entrepreneurs

 on the performance of SMEs in Dublin, Ireland.

 Date:
 ______17th August 2020______

Material submitted for award

- A. I declare that this work submitted has been composed by myself. $\Box x$
- B. I declare that all verbatim extracts contained in the thesis have been distinguished by quotation marks and the sources of information specifically acknowledged.

 $\Box x$

C. I agree to my thesis being deposited in the NCI Library online

open access repository NORMA. $\Box x$

D. *Either* *I declare that no material contained in the thesis has been used in any other submission for an academic award. \Box_X

Acknowledgement

I would like to say a big thank you to everybody who made a contribution to the success of this research especially my supervisor Caitriona Hughes. I really appreciate your guidance and support in this research especially when I was discouraged and faced with challenges. You supported me all the way in completing the thesis.

My appreciation goes to the entire Library staff, the lecturers and everyone who participated in this study because without you there would not have been any content for the thesis. To conclude I thank my family and friends for their unconditional love, support and motivation during this intense academic year.

Table of Contents

THE IMPACT OF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT OF ENTREPRENEUT THE PERFORMANCE OF SMES IN DUBLIN, IRELAND	
Abstract	<i>ii</i>
Acknowledgement	<i>ii</i>
Chapter 1 - Introduction	1
- 1.1 Background to the Study	
1.2 Statement of the Problem	
1.3 Objectives of the Study	
1.4 Research Questions	
1.5 Research Hypothesis	
1.6 Scope of the Study	
1.7 Significance of the Study	
1.8 Definition of Terms	
Chapter 2 - Literature Review	
2.1 Introduction	
2.2.1 Entrepreneur	
2.2.2 Entrepreneurs, Born or Made?	
2.2.3 Training and Development of Entrepreneurs	
2.2.4 Entrepreneurship Training and Education2.2.5 Benefits and Issues of Entrepreneurial Training	
2.2.5 Benefits and Issues of Entrepreneurial Training	
2.2.7 Factors That Influence Business	
2.2.8 Reasons for Business Failures	
2.3 Identification of the Research Gap	
2.4 Summary	
Chapter 3 - Methodology of the Study	
3.1 Introduction	
3.2 Research objections	
3.3 Research Questions	
3.4 Research Hypothesis	
3.5 Research Design	
3.6 Qualitative research	
3.7 Quantitative research	
3.8 Justification of approach	
3.9 Cross-section design	
3.10 Proposed methodology	

3.11 Data collection
3.12 Survey method
3.13 Validity and Reliability of the Instrument
3.14 Method of Data Analysis
3.15 Research Population and Sample Population
Chapter 4 - Analysis and findings
4.0 Introduction
4.1 Presentation of Results
4.2 Analysis of Respondents' Demographic characteristics
4.3 Analysis of Research Questions:
4.4 Hypothesis Testing
4.5 Summary of Findings:
Chapter 5 - Discussion, Conclusion and Recommendation
5.1 Discussion of Findings 39 5.1.1 Most Attained Level of Education of SME Entrepreneurs 39 5.1.2 Most used Method of Entrepreneurship Training 40 5.1.3 Relationship between Entrepreneurship Training and Business Performance 41 5.1.4 Effect of Entrepreneurship training methods on the performance of SMEs among SMEs in Ireland 42 42 5.1.5 Perception of SMEs Operators on entrepreneural training 42
5.2 Conclusion
5.2 Conclusion
5.3 Recommendations
5.3 Recommendations
5.3 Recommendations

Chapter 1 - Introduction

1.1 Background to the Study

Performance of SMEs in Ireland is a catalyst for economic growth and development of the country. The performance of businesses is a function of skill and knowledge acquisition of the owners and their willingness to subject their workforce to suitable training programmes that will optimize their rate of performance. The stimulation of new business innovation and entrepreneurship performance is best driven by SMEs (Zhou and Gao 2019). The output of the SMEs is a function of the level of growth and development that can be witnessed in the country. Any nation that is passionate about motivating the best performance of the SMEs is doing herself a lot of good. However, the low level of attention paid to the yearnings of the SMEs in the areas of incentivising and training will portend doom for the industry and the nation's economy at large.

Scholars have opined that entrepreneurship is the core of national development (Gagoitseope and Pansiri, 2012). This indicates that government should give the needed attention to entrepreneurial development at all levels of the enterprise in Ireland. The needed skills for business owners must be made available to them at a reasonable cost and the capital financing options for businesses should be encouraging and not demotivating. Adequate attention should be paid to manpower development and knowledge acquisition should be seen as a salient factor in the industry.

In a vibrant economy as Ireland, SMEs are the most important part that should be given the required and needed attention (Okundaye, Fan and Dwyer 2019). In order to develop SMEs on the basis of entrepreneurship is a kind of strategy that involves in the creation of jobs, reduction of poverty, making the environment suitable for the growth of socioeconomic activities and generation of revenue (Rahayu and Day, 2017). This is because a large proportion of the workforce is absorbed by them. SMEs are the highest employer of the youth in the country because most of the works performed by these businesses can only be carried out by only the youthful population. It is not only the youth that are employed by these SMEs, other categories of the population are also absorbed in their enterprises. In essence, small and medium scale businesses are the veritable tool for ensuring reduction of unemployment in the country. Therefore, a sector that reduces the unemployment burden on

the government deserves better in terms of being treated kindly and given the necessary focus.

In order to attain performance of business that is sustainable, essential skills are critical (Perks and Smith, 2006). This is because with relevant entrepreneurial skills, SMEs will be able to thrive more and become sustainable. The skills will help new businesses to develop the needed and relevant capacity for the business. Skills are important for small and medium scale enterprises to grow and survive in a competitive business world (Amatori, 2006). These skills are acquired through relevant trainings organized by experts in the industry. Therefore, on the basis of this, the study investigated impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance in Ireland.

1.2 Statement of the Problem

Poor performance of SMEs in Ireland over the years is as a result of inadequate skills and knowledge of the actors of the industry on the art of doing business. This can be seen in most of the output of the various industries that have no international competitive edge. Several businesses are springing up for the purpose of making profit, without having the understanding that the key to long-term profitability is customer retention through superior performance attainable through the acquisition of relevant skills. Therefore, poverty of skill acquisition will have its toll on the performance of the business.

For SMEs to actually perform, the need to train the staff must not be negotiated. The issue of considering entrepreneurial training as less essential should not be allowed in the industry. Therefore, in order to avoid a total collapse of SMEs through inadequate entrepreneurial training which might result in economic recession, the need to refocus attention on ways of sustaining their activities should be taken seriously by the policy makers in the country. Hence, this study sought to unravel the impact of entrepreneurial training on the performance of SMEs in Ireland.

1.3 Objectives of the Study

The main objective of the study was to examine the impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance in Ireland, while the specific objectives are:

1. To ascertain the most attained educational level of entrepreneurs of SMEs.

2. To investigate the effect of entrepreneurship training on SMEs performance.

3. To determine the relationship between training and development and entrepreneur's performance.

4. To determine the most effective method of entrepreneurship training.

5. To examine the view that SMEs have on entrepreneurial training.

1.4 Research Questions

1. What is the most attained educational level of entrepreneurs of SMEs?

2. What is the view that SMEs have on entrepreneurial training?

3. What are the most used methods of training and development that have effects on the performance of SMEs?

1.5 Research Hypothesis

1. Training and development of entrepreneurs have a significant relationship on the growth and performance of SMEs.

2. Entrepreneur training methods have a significant impact on the performance of SMEs.

1.6 Scope of the Study

The study was carried out in the Republic of Ireland among the SMEs operators. The independent variable of the study was entrepreneurial training, while the dependent variable was the performance of SMEs. A total of 50 respondents participated in the investigation.

1.7 Significance of the Study

The study will add value to the body of literature, as it fills the gap in the dearth of recent literature on entrepreneurial training and SMEs performance in Ireland. It will serve as eye opener to the SME entrepreneurs on the benefits of training to their enterprise. The study will help the government and policy maker on making laws that will address issue of entrepreneurial training in an efficient and effective manner. It will help future researchers as a reference point for boosting their research referencing. It will help in economic

sustainability, as trained entrepreneurs will add value to the economy through increase output and performance.

1.8 Definition of Terms

Entrepreneurial Training: This is the process by which owners of businesses (entrepreneurs) are made to acquire relevant skills, knowledge and experience required of their job by the experts in the field.

SME Performance: This is the level at which the productivity and output of the SMEs are considered to know if they are functioning to capacity or not.

SMEs: Small and medium enterprises.

Chapter 2 - Literature Review

2.1 Introduction

One of the first argument in entrepreneurship literature is whether entrepreneurs are born or made and the effects of training and development of an entrepreneur. Studies have shown that there is a genetic component to entrepreneurship. However, overtime the discussions have also stated that entrepreneurs are made. This argument shows two extreme side as: one of which is that "entrepreneurs are born" and the other side states that "entrepreneurs can be made". Confronted with these positions, it seems that the line emerges that one should learn to employ differentiated education policies and instruments as an entrepreneur. A wide literature review on entrepreneurship and business establishment provides support to this view and suggests important links between entrepreneurship education, business development and business performance in the context of SMEs.

Therefore, conducting a literature review is a key part of the research process to determine the importance of training and development of SME entrepreneurs. Knowledge of prior work and theories in this field of study will help to conceptualize the issue, perform the survey and analyse the findings. The literature studies have been conducted to show the impact of entrepreneurs training and their performance in SMEs in Ireland as well as other countries. During the literature review, it has been noticed that the term "entrepreneurs training and SMEs performance" has been used in different senses by researchers. This chapter will highlight entrepreneurs training as well as SMEs performance across the world.

2.2 Review of Relevant Literature

2.2.1 Entrepreneur

The entrepreneur is also seen as a visionary person, an innovator, a source of innovative concepts, products, services and/or procedures for achievement of goals and objectives. "Some researchers believed that entrepreneurs are born and not made" (Cohen, 1980); others are of the opinion that entrepreneurs are made and not born (Burns and Dewhurst, 1993; Kent, 1984). Whilst debating if entrepreneurs were born or made, most of the researchers accepts that entrepreneurship are encouraged, motivated and taught the major aspects of entrepreneurship. (Kuratko 2005).

Entrepreneurs should be able to develop a business plan showing that they plan wisely in terms of budget and to show investors that they consider the various risk that might be involved. Some of the possible risks include but not limited to bankruptcy, competitive risk, environmental risk, financial risk, reputational risk, economic and political risks. Technological changes as a risk factor should also be considered and that Market demands are unpredictable because the trends of consumers are changing rapidly, thereby creating problems for them.

According to Gallup poll 2004, 89 percent of small business owners said they were satisfied being a business owner, whereas 39 percent said they were very happy and 16 percent extremely satisfied and just 10% claimed they were not satisfied being a business owner. Despite the challenges faced by entrepreneurs, it was stated that the entrepreneurs were more satisfied being their own boss than being employees. The reason being they can have flexible schedules, business and profit autonomy, create a career that align with their values, Constant growth and development, greater self-confidence with leadership experience.

PROFILE OF AN ENTREPRENEUR			
Characteristics Traits			
	Belief in one's ability		
Self-confidence	Independent		
	Anticipation		
High energy	Commitment and resilience, Determination		
	Goal oriented		
Task/result oriented	Hard work, willingness		
	Initiative		

	Risk evaluation and ability to take risk	
Risk-taker	Likes challenges	
	Good communicator	
Leadership	Gets along well with others	
	Responsive to suggestions, feedbacks and criticism	
	Concern for other persons	
	Develops other people	
	Innovative	
Originality	open minded	
	Talented	
	knowledgeable	
Forward looking	Foresight, vision, perceptiveness	

2.2.2 Entrepreneurs, Born or Made?

Over the years, there have been serious argument about Entrepreneurs being born or made. In some local surveys conducted, a lot of people believe that entrepreneurs are born and endowed with the entrepreneurial traits. They also believe that it would be impossible for them to succeed as entrepreneurs and find themselves comfortable as employees. They do not have the ability to handle the risks and rewards that will arise. Others believe that if they had the opportunity of training, they will succeed as entrepreneurs. Entrepreneurs are not like athletes; they need no natural body and muscles inherent in it. A child of an athlete may grow up being an athlete, but this does not happen in the family of an entrepreneur. (Mitchell, Busenitz et al 2002) proposed a hypothesis that connects different mental processes with the actions of entrepreneurs, suggesting that entrepreneurial cognitions are systems of

information that people are using in their evaluations, decisions or judgments, which involve evaluation, creation and development of opportunities. Nabi et al. (2010) states that the research on the intention of an entrepreneur states very little about: (i) the process involved in the personal transition of higher education towards entrepreneurship (ii) the transformation from being a student to becoming an entrepreneur; and (iii) failure to clarify the low followup on the intention of an entrepreneur.

Nevertheless, it has been stated according to a research's nature or nutrition: the decode by Ernst and Young of the entrepreneur 's DNA, which means they have gained some experience outside of the entrepreneurial world before starting their business. It is believed that during childhood and adolescent years the optimal stage is to learn the fundamental skills and to establish a healthy mindset towards entrepreneurship (Peterman and Kennedy, 2003; Paço et al., 2011). Peterman and Kennedy (2003) emphasized that corporate practices would help the ethos in colleges. These activities should be included in the institution's programs from the very beginning. In addition, several findings have shown that early schooling in structured business affects the behaviour of pupils, impacts them towards their potential professions and affects their entrepreneurial tendency in adults. Florin et al. (2007) said individuals ought to consider the use of their expertise as possible, a business strategy is ideal and emphasis on cultivating a productive entrepreneurship attitude. All of these indicate that the company provides a great deal of dedication training. Entrepreneurs that are successful are indeed born, and they need to apply their traits in certain way. However, nobody is born with all the qualities or characteristics required to be 100% successful on their own. Also, to prove that entrepreneurs are born, Bridge et al (2003) examined various theories such as, behavioural theories, personality theories and sociological theories. It was stated that the personality and traits of an individual leads to successful entrepreneurship which distinguished them from other entrepreneurs. Many authors have agreed that the psychological traits of the orientation of an entrepreneur are excellent foresight (Park and Ku, 2008), however, other researchers have pointed out that it is possible to develop these traits through the appropriate kind of entrepreneurship training (Shaver, 1995; Dunbar and Mullen, 1991; Fayolle, 2005). Andrews (1998) proposed that entrepreneurship personality exist in the genes or is engraved in the early years of life or a combination of the two, without which an individual is not likely to succeed entrepreneurially. However, Lumsden and Wilson (1981) argues that although, genes are the potential for an individual action, but it is not responsible for dictating it. The literature reinforces perceived behavioural control with respect to

behaviour patterns associated with entrepreneurship. Ajzen (1991) proposed that every action requires a certain degree of preparation and an ability to pursue the activity may be anticipated (theory of planned behaviour –TPB). Consequently, Li (2006) argued that the TPB is very helpful and provides a good theoretical framework to understand past intentions of entrepreneurs. Also, Souitaris et al. (2007) in their research used the Theory of planned behaviour to test the impact of entrepreneurship training on the attitude and actions of the science and engineering students by empirically applying the theory of planned behaviour.

Generally, the main psychological characteristics associated with entrepreneurship whether born or made are: locus of control (which means a psychological concept that refers to the level at which an individual believe they have control over the situations and experiences that affect their lives), propensity to take risk, self-confidence, need for achievement, tolerance to ambiguity and innovativeness which can be learnt by an individual. Innovation which is not necessarily done is the core attribute of entrepreneurship. Innovation is a new idea, a new technique, and a new path for a new sector. Most cases of businesses having collapsed because of lack of creativity. For example, in 1966, because of the replacement of the new car construction, Carrozzeria Touring, an Italian automotive coach builder, came to an end. The renowned Apple company, on the other hand, is succeeding with innovation. As we all remember, every year Apple launches its latest devices or its current items, and Steven Jobs had the fantastic popularity in iPhone, iPad and iMac. In addition to creativity, practice, expertise and management qualities are often of great significance such as collaboration and leadership, honesty and enthusiasm (Pinelli, 2001). Teamwork and leadership is a key ability that has not been born out of life. This needed the contractor "to solve complicated challenges with the use of abilities of different community leaders," and "to build a partnership that promotes creativity and performance" (Reimers and Williams, 2009). The team has an important impact on the company, so the contractor must organize his team well. "Pass and listen, ask and summarize, express and create faith between entrepreneurs and leaders' representatives. Therefore, the schools of business teach and train students to learn the above skills. Moreover, integrity that leads to an honest business is also a personal ability, which is strongly influenced and not born by the living environment. If it cheated its customers, it wouldn't exist long. "This is a blocker for unification" (Anderson, 2008). Employers must persuade consumers to purchase their goods or spend their company through the honesty process, so that they earn income and obtain support for their company. Similar to your entrepreneurship ambition, passion improves your employment and your entrepreneurial experience (Kamai, 2011). Everyone is passionate, and passion leads entrepreneurs to start and to grow their business. Passion is an interest acquired of professional performing. It's some sort of trust for your enterprise. He or she would only be excited about the market if the entrepreneur achieves his or her goal. Teamwork and management, integrity and passion, therefore, are not achieved, but are acquired after birth. In view of understanding the psychological features that are unique to entrepreneurs, this evidence should be expected, according to Koh (1996). Studies of Ahmad (2010) also shows that personality characteristics is one of the most popular theories of psychology used to understand, explain and predict the action of an individual including in entrepreneurship. Therefore, the challenge is to have an in-depth understanding of whether the outcome of personal characteristics can accompany entrepreneurship training both on the level of cognitive development and psychological development of young people.

According to a research carried out by Logendran Mayuran (2016), the learning approaches were explained by different approaches which are Knowledge based theory, resource-based theory and situational based theory. It was further explained that the knowledge-based theory emphasized on the role of business as knowledge repository, set of routines and procedure in the business whereby knowledge responds by means of a developmental process of life-long learning or experiences to external stimuli. It also enabled the description of small businesses in terms of skills, practise and procedures developed through the process of selection and retention, execution of strategies to optimize the degree of adjustment between the business and its external environment. The resource-based theory explained the performance of a business based on its capacity to access and develop within itself, critical and inimitable resources. The situational approach analysed the competencies of an individual bolding role in recurrent work situations.

The subjective standard is characterized as a definition of whether or not the behavior should be carried out or not. Therefore, the highest subjective norm may be described as the overall definition of the person and the measurement of motivation for all related aspects. In their study, Souitaris et al. (2007) gives possible interpretations of the subjective norm after the entrepreneurship training programme: the small rise in the "significant others' expectation" could reflect the development of a new circle of entrepreneurial-minded people from the programme. Levie and Autio (2008) have summarized a literature which emphasizes that training provides an individual with the cognitive ability to combine their skills and ability with potential entrepreneurship opportunities. In addition to the literature, van der Van et al (2005) and Isaacs et al. (2007) outlined a collection of literature that illustrates the way schooling provides a person with a cognitive capacity to balance future entrepreneurship with their respective skills. Kolvereid (1996) said the greater behavioural influence experienced by a individual, the better his purpose is to become autonomous. This assumed power is in effect one of the key factors of self-efficiency, perceptible viability. According to Fayolle (2005) self-efficacy was found to significantly influence the behaviour of entrepreneurs and also support entrepreneurship students' self-efficacy which is therefore seen as a key tool in entrepreneurship training to encourage students' entrepreneurial intentions (Raposo, et al., 2008).

All these prove that Training and development of entrepreneurs is necessary whether born or made, irrespective of the level of entrepreneurship education, formal education, age group, gender, race etc. It increases the chance of success of an entrepreneur.

2.2.3 Training and Development of Entrepreneurs

Training and development can be said to be the formal process made within a business to improve performance and self-fulfilment through educational programs and methods. In addition, Magjuka (1999) defined training as a narrow concept whereby skills, knowledge or values acquired are targeted towards a specific issue while education is the acquisition of skills and knowledge that are easily generalized and can be used in various settings within an enterprise.

The importance of training and development in any area cannot be overemphasized. It increases morale, motivation, financial gain, turnover, adaptation to technology, development of new strategies, improved risk management etc. The study conducted by Watson and Jurie (2002), emphasized the importance of entrepreneurship training program to the success of a business. It further stressed that the training acquired were on business skills such as financial, marketing, production, calculations than on other skills. Hisrich & Peters (1998) argues that training of entrepreneurs brings about new opportunities and possibilities as well as a willingness to carry out and complete specific task in various way.

The training needs of entrepreneurs of SMEs have been widely researched (Storey 2004; Storey and Westhead 1997) and the results of their study showed that SMEs are not

committed to formal training and qualification but seeks opportunities that will enable them solve their immediate problems (Gray 1994). According to (Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development 2015), the training of an entrepreneur can be said to build a person's capacity in order to turn ideas into action. The concept behind teaching and developing entrepreneurs is to enable an individual learn, build and practice the skills and techniques that are required. (Neck and Greenen 2011).

2.2.4 Entrepreneurship Training and Education

Caroline and James (2013) defined entrepreneurship education as the process or series of activities aimed at enabling an individual to assimilate and develop knowledge, skills, values and understanding to identify, analysis and solve a broad range of problems while entrepreneurship training is the means of learnings to make effective results in an activity or a range of activities as a more planned and systematic effort to change or develop knowledge, competencies.

The entrepreneurial training focuses on the knowledge, skills, ability and job performance which is for a short period and on a specific job while the entrepreneurship education focuses on a structured development of an individual to certain specific outcomes which is for a specified period. The common methods of training involve demonstration, practice, feedback, apprenticeship, mentoring while the education involves lectures, guided reading, presentations, debate and self-managed learning.

In apprenticeship, practical training of related skills that will eventually increase the performance of a person is acquired from learning by practice with an experienced trainer. Mentoring is focused on developing leadership and managerial skills.

The commonalities between Entrepreneurship training and education is the acquisition of skills and knowledge in order to better operate in running a business. In the research carried out by (Hanti et al. 2008), it was discovered that offering students the chance to do real life projects was the most beneficial method of learning. Participants were directly involved, and they developed their managerial skills.

All that want to be actively interested in the teaching phase will profit from a variety of advantages. According to Rae (2010), education is important for the understanding of entrepreneurship, creating market potential, and contributing to an individual, group, and

social identity and culture of entrepreneurs. However, preparation is aimed at forming ideas on what businesses want to prevent transmitting the ideology of entrepreneurship and at creating critical awareness that leads to entrepreneurs' duty to society. The educational curriculum for entrepreneurship aims both to strengthen the development of main entrepreneurial aspects and to build a clear view of entrepreneurial issues, according to Bakotic and Kruzic (2010). Throughout this way, the authors support the need for further education of the graduates, which should be based on acquiring new skills and needed later on in the sense of the sector. In his analysis on the need for entrepreneurial training, however, Jusoh et al (2011) found that there is a lack of entrepreneurial skill training in fields like innovation and creativity improvement. The Consortium for Entrepreneurship Education (2008) stated that the entrepreneurship education was not all about teaching someone to operate a business. It also promotes creative/innovative thinking and fosters a strong sense of self-esteem and empowerment. Students can learn how to create a business through entrepreneurship education, but they also learn a lot more. The main knowledge developed through entrepreneurship education includes:

- The ability of one to identify opportunities in life.
- The ability to pursue opportunities, by creating innovative concepts and solutions.
- The ability to develop and run a new business.
- The ability to think in a critical manner and creatively.

2.2.5 Benefits and Issues of Entrepreneurial Training

Globally, entrepreneurship training programs introduced are intended to provide the level of education or knowledge needed to identify and make use of entrepreneurial opportunity which could help the economic development of such countries. These trainings also come with some benefits, issues and challenges. Caroline and James (2013) stated that the current issue is the poor quality and curricula of the courses that are concerned. Consequently, Rosa and McAlpine (1992) supported this statement by stressing out that there was a void where substantial elements within the entrepreneurship training program existed and that people are trained without the necessary elements needed. Henry et al. (2003) states that entrepreneurship programmes can be effective and provide tremendous benefits for aspiring entrepreneurs. However, there have been concerns about the influence of university education

on entrepreneurship as to the effects on the transition from intentional behaviour of entrepreneurs or the success of an entrepreneur (Nabi et al., 2010).

While a certain number of studies have been conducted on a variety of aspects of start-up practices, one thing which is not very evident is how practices leading to start-ups or businesses suit the content of entrepreneurial classes' course work, therefore, it is significant to reflect about the relevance of what is being taught particularly, if the activities of start-up are effectively expressed in the content and delivery entrepreneurship course (Edelman et al., 2008). Likewise, Hanushek and Woessmann (2008) stated that entrepreneurs are usually good at starting businesses but poor at managing the business with a sense of obligation to run their businesses and become great. Garavan and Barra (1994) identified the most popular referred objectives of entrepreneurship training programmes to be the following: i) gain valuable knowledge of entrepreneurship; ii) gain the appropriate skills in the application of strategies, in market analysis and in the review of action plans; iii) identifying and promoting the appropriate skills of entrepreneurship; iv) to develop support and empathy for the various aspects of entrepreneurship; iv) to develop an attitude that welcomes uncertainty and change; and vi) to encourage the new start-ups.

These training programmes of entrepreneurship will contribute to the development of entrepreneurial capabilities. Hisrich and Peter (1998) states that the different skills required by an entrepreneur can be categorised into: technical skills, business management skills and personal entrepreneurial skills. OECD (2015), Identifies the core skills required by an entrepreneur to be literacy, communications, problem solving, creativity, risk taking, self-awareness and the desire to innovate. Henry et al. (2005) added that the development of these personal skills is what determines the performance of an entrepreneur.

Thus, these different goals of entrepreneurship training programs can require very different abilities, skills and knowledge. While many aspects of entrepreneurship can be taught, there must always be some attitude to risks.

Nonetheless, some of these courses, rather than preparing for industry, relate entrepreneurship to new projects and management, and inform company and enterprise, very seldom concentrate on the skills and behaviour (Kirby, 2004).

The best educational framework for entrepreneurship is found in the realistic theory of pedagogy, according to Dewey (1963). This theory acknowledges that circumstances in real

life are ambiguous and that personal experience needs to be developed. The authors proposed the concept of teaching entrepreneurship as a way of identifying opportunities and implementing a business, which is different from the current way it was taught to do so. Furthermore, Neck and Greene (2011) indicated that teaching entrepreneurship as an approach "implies that we enable students to understand, build and practice the skills and techniques required for successful entrepreneurship. Basically, it calls for practice, and that means educators focus on helping students. The assumptions in this method are: (I) applies to beginners and experts; (ii) applies across all ranges of applications; (iii) require constant practical practice; and (iv) applies to a volatile environment.

(Murray and White, 1986) posits that the duty to teach entrepreneurship does not rely solely on the educational world. In fact, there is a need to build an environment that promotes entrepreneurship at public level.

2.2.6 Performance of Small and Medium scale enterprises (SMEs)

Business performance is a complex structure that is difficult to measure accurately (Rogers and Wright 1998) and to address the problem, some studies have proposed that the performance of SMEs should be measured as the degree to which the business is generating revenues. According to (Maduekwe & Kamala, 2016), SMEs make use of the financial and non-financial metrics to measure their performance, although the financial performance indicators are frequently applied rather than the non-financial performance measure. The financial performance measures the profit generated by the business and gives an indication of whether the business can be expanded, maintained or closed. It also shows the possibility of diversification if necessary.

Cook and Nixon (2000) stated that the interest in the role of SMEs in the process of development continues to be at the top of policy debates in developed countries. Therefore, the operation and development of modern businesses are in the present digital economy which is directly related to entrepreneurship and Westhead et al (2011) states that entrepreneurship continues to play a key role in the creation and growth of businesses.

(Thurik and Wennekers, 1999) stated that small and medium scale enterprises can be a platform pioneers for entrepreneurs who are introducing new processes and products that transform the market as well as individuals who operate a business for a living. The effect of

the global financial and economic crises calls for a greater position for entrepreneurs and self-employment in economic and social growth policies.

According to Arzeni (2015), it is important for youths who faces high unemployment rate and difficulties entering into the labour market to start their own businesses. However, starting up a new business is a challenging, an unsustainable operation and several businesses have struggled in the first 12 months of trading (Reynolds & Miller, 1992, Sullivan et al, 1998). it is important to remember that today's business world is more competitive than ever before. Many businesses face a wide variety of difficult issues like finding the right finance, planning, hiring of good helps if required, staying committed, time management, information management, finding the right location, budgeting and having a balance between work and personal life that could easily put an end to them before they even begun. Luckily, some developed countries develop policies and grant resources that can help minimize the challenges of starting a new business.

Previous studies established a range of possible impacts on the performance of SMEs, including the effect of size of business at start-up, the entry phase, customers and innovation. For example, Johnson, et al (1996) observed that the size of a business plays an important role in the rate of growth of very small businesses, with small enterprises reporting the highest rate of growth. SMEs varies in different sizes, operations and the type of business in which they are engaged, thus the small size of the business has its benefits such as easy processes and simple structures which allows for increase in flexibility, adaptability as well as drawbacks such as scarcity of resources, superficial managerial and technological expertise. Brandstatter (1997) indicates that, while there are various explanations as to why so many new businesses tend to fail within the first five years, the absence of personality and task structure could be one of the major reasons why businesses fail thus, There is further proof that most small business owners who are successful had previously worked in small businesses or smaller units of larger companies (Lussier, Robert N., 1996; Fothergill & Gudgin, 1982).

In general, SMEs usually have limited resources as well a low aspiration for finding new knowledge, skills, ideas, information, technology and tools that will be considered to bring about an increase in capabilities and competences that results in the superior performance. Bernes et al (2016) revealed the impact of organisational, marketing and innovation on SMEs performance, the study showed the important roles for businesses that generated rare,

valuable, unique and irreplaceable goods and services which brought about superior performances.

2.2.7 Factors That Influence Business

There are a lot of factors that can influence the performance of a business. Business environment has shown to have a combination of two major factors which are internal and external factors that influences their business operating situation. Therefore, understanding of the various factors that affect or impacts on the performance of SMEs is very crucial to this study. According to a study carried out by Mehralizadeh and Sajady (2005), the internal factors were considered to be:

- i) characteristics of entrepreneur,
- ii) financial management and
- iii) planning and organization.

In addition the Business Research Centre (2008), it is stated that the dominant feature of the issues faced internally is the one man issue whereby most of the management responsibility solely lies on an individual who may not possess the required skill set or the time to apply them appropriately and this one person is usually the entrepreneur who tend to handle all the management functions including sales, marketing, resourcing, financial control, purchasing and planning thereby requiring training and development of those functions.

In terms of external factors, it is generally accepted that successful businesses are those which adapts to the opportunities in the business environment in which they operate (Kalleberg & Leicht, 1991). The external factors were considered to be:

- i) economic and infrastructure,
- ii) government,
- iii) social support and
- iv) information.

The study showed that skills, training, economic situation, human relation were important effects on the high performance of a business. Mahmood (2008) indicates the role corporate

governance is an important factor for SMEs performance and sustainability. Corporate governance describes the process and structures in place through which a business is managed. It looks at different policies that are put in place to encourage and support the SMEs growth as well as making use of the resources. The growing number of SMEs indicate how good an economy is performing.

Another study carried out by (Alam 2011; Mothibi 2015) described the business age, the owners educational qualification, experience, managerial competence, business size, sector and location of the business as the major demographic factors that influences the performance of SMEs, However, Blackburn and Wainwright (2013) concluded that the business age and size influences the performance and are more important than the strategy and characteristics of the entrepreneur. Omerzel and Kusce (2013) shows that self-efficacy and Risk-taking, and that the desire for independence are the most significant factors impacting the success of a businessman.

2.2.8 Reasons for Business Failures

According to Clark, S. (1997), the reasons for business failure are majorly money, management and marketing. Lewis Paul (2003) listed twelve leading management mistakes that leads to the failure of a business;

- i) starting up a business for the wrong purpose,
- ii) taking advice from family and friends,
- iii) being at a wrong time in a wrong location,
- iv) getting worn out,
- v) family pressure or money commitment,
- vi) pride,
- vii) lack of market awareness,
- viii) falling in love with the business or product,
- ix) lack of financial knowledge or responsibilities,

- x) absence of clarity.
- xi) excess cash
- xii) not being realistic.

Trainings plays a major role in the success and profitability of a business. According to Aderemi Ayinla Alarape, (2007), small enterprises whose owners had the knowledge acquired from entrepreneurship programs-exhibited superior management practice; thus, had a higher profit margin and growth rate than those small enterprises whose owners/managers did not partake in the experiential learning. However, some studies have been conducted to investigate the issues concerning the involvement of SMEs in training (Westhead, 1998; Hunt and Hogan, 2005) and according to their results, the issues faced by SMEs trainings were related to

i) lack of time,

ii) high training costs, and

iii) underestimation of training effects among the main issues affecting the role of SMEs in training.

Roomi, Harrison and Beaumont-Kerridge (2009) stated that growth in a business is a complex process and can be seen by a range of SMEs in different sectors and maturities. However, the idea of SMEs success could be equated with a firm that in five stages of small business growth has completely completed the transition into stage two. The key problem in the growth of a new business is that most SMEs fail to move from the first stage to the phase of success, survival, take off and maturity of resources.

2.3 Identification of the Research Gap

The literature review on entrepreneurial training has found that an interest and research focus of a wide spectrum of management disciplines is the phenomenon of entrepreneurial activities. Entrepreneurship is a field of research that is relatively new, it is not more than 20-25 years old, a comparatively young area of study. It has shown to be more important than the other areas of management studies over the past decade. (Spain, 2005). As in several other social science study fields, entrepreneurship research is grounded in society 's growth

and transition. Entrepreneurship has become a motivating force in many countries and particularly in Europe for the settlement and the catalyst for development (Fayolle and Kyro 2008). Thus the theory's predictions concerning the connections between self-employment behaviours, the subjective norm and behavioural management (Kolvereid, 1996) were widely supported by many empirical studies in entrepreneurship of performers in SMEs.

In this milieu, the failure in some research to find a connection between subjective norm and intention, this study is an attempt to study the impact and training of entrepreneurs and SMEs performance in Dublin, Ireland.

2.4 Summary

This chapter sheds light on the importance of entrepreneurship training for optimum performance of SME's growth. It further highlighted the fact that whether some entrepreneurs are born or made, training and development plays a key role in the success of the business. Unlike the past where you can only learn about the trade and skills required to be an entrepreneur, the way businesses are conducted in this era is mostly through the internet. This requires that entrepreneurs also train on Information Communication Technology (ICT) related courses, social media marketing strategies, advertising etc, in order to keep up with the trend where the customer base is high. That way, the chances of success is increased.



Training and Development (Formal and informal)	Immediate problem solving Focusing on a specific skill
Education (Level of education)	Business managerial skill Personal entrepreneurial skill Decision making
Performance	Growth Profit Competitive advantage

The personality of an entrepreneur would determine how far and how well they will succeed in their business because personality has to do with oneself, how they carry themselves, and how they run their business. They are seen to be innovative and a risk-taker.

Training and development seek to address the needs of a particular group of people and these needs will vary on a number of factors such as size, location, sector, stage of the business, learning style and outcome. The needs tend to change in relation to the situation of the business and environment of the business.

Education of an entrepreneur has seen in some studies had a positive impact in building the skills of the entrepreneurs and their decision making in business all of which determines how the entrepreneur is going to perform.

Therefore, the purpose of the research is to understand the relationship between these factors and how they affect the performance of the SMEs.

Chapter 3 - Methodology of the Study

3.1 Introduction

This section discusses the research questions and examines the impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance through the investigation and literature view. Rajasekar et al (2006), research is a logical and systematic search for finding new and valuable knowledge on a specific topic. A research can lead to new findings and contributions on an existing knowledge and the effectiveness of the research is to identify the condition as it occurs.

Ghauriv and Grohaug (2005) describe the research method as a formal and oriented procedure to acquire information as well as answer a specific research question or issue through the use of qualitative or quantitative research or even both methods.

This chapter addresses the theoretical approach of the appropriate research methodology process to identify and choose the preferred data collection technique that can be used in the conduct of this research. It looks at the methodological approach adopted and the justification of the study.

3.2 Research objections

1. To ascertain the most attained educational level of entrepreneurs of SMEs.

2. To investigate the effect of entrepreneurship training on SMEs performance.

3. To determine the relationship between training and development and entrepreneur's performance.

4. To determine the most effective method of entrepreneurship training.

5. To examine the view that SMEs have on entrepreneurial training.

3.3 Research Questions

1. What is the most attained educational level of entrepreneurs of SMEs?

2. What is the view that SMEs have on entrepreneurial training?

3. What are the most commonly used training and development methods that have effects on the performance of SMEs?

3.4 Research Hypothesis

With reference to previous literatures on training and development of entrepreneurs, the following hypothesis will be useful in deciding whether the literature supports entrepreneurship training having an impact on SMEs performance or not. This will be gathered from the answers collected from the survey respondents and shown in the analysis.

The hypothesis below will either be Null (H0), which is in support of the previous literature or Alternative hypothesis (Ha) which is not in support of the previous literature.

H1: Training and development of entrepreneurs have a significant relationship on the growth and SMEs performance.

H2: Entrepreneur training methods have a significant impact on the performance of SMEs.

3.5 Research Design

The quantitative and cross-sectional research design was used for this research. The design of the research is associated with the research questions that intend to determine the effect of training of entrepreneurs and the impact it has on the performance of SMEs among other variables of the research.

3.6 Qualitative research

This is a multimethodology study which takes a naturalistic and interpretive approach to its subject (Denzin & Lincoln, 1994). This approach provides for a narrative view of people to reality and relies on people's words. This method of approach does not concentrate on a specific issue but examines the theory and philosophical concept in an explicit inquisitive way which describes how they feel (Neuman 2006). It is used to obtain an understanding of underlying reasons, opinions, and motives. Qualitative data collection methods such as focus groups or interviews vary using unstructured or semi-structured techniques. It focuses on understanding and interpreting of a social construction meaning in a natural setting.

3.7 Quantitative research

This is a study that describes a phenomenon by gathering statistical data to helps investigate accurately on the method Creswell (2013). The approach used is a survey for data collection with the use of empirical techniques for testing and verifying of experimental or null hypothesis through scientific methods. The design for quantitative research aims to investigate and examine the impact and relationships which can establish a cause and effect in highly controlled circumstances. Quantitative research method can also help establish the correlations between a given variables and the outcomes. These data allow for others to validate the original findings by independently replicating the analysis (Dudwick, et al 2006).

3.8 Justification of approach

The quantitative research approach was chosen because it is more scientific, objective, focused, fast, more reliable, acceptable and often restructures and reduces a complex problem to a set of variable which can be admitted and evaluated quickly while qualitative research is particularly challenging to narrow down because of its evolving characteristics and flexibility (Van 1998). The related problem of qualitative research is that it often fails to express its objectives, goals or research questions that frames the papers, guides the data analysis and research outcomes.

3.9 Cross-section design

This design seeks to investigate the relationship between the variable of interest on another within a population at a specified period of time. It can either be in an analytical or descriptive form. This method is adopted because of the effectiveness on exploring and measuring the relationship between variables, testing hypothesis and analysing data to support and suggest possible limitations and implications of the study.

Framework Designed for the analysis of variables.



The above variables will be investigated, and the implication will be analysed based on the information gathered from the participants of the study.

3.10 Proposed methodology

Van (2005) defines methodology as an organized approach to problem solving by empirical assistance to the analysis of the approvals and completion of study. The approaches used to define, explain and forecast the proposed phenomenon includes explanations and motivation behind the methods chosen.

The purpose of this study is hypothesis testing since the study is done to establish the relationship between training and development of entrepreneurs and SMEs performance. This section examines the practical and appropriate approach to methodology behaviour of the study in order to guarantee that the knowledge acquisition progresses smoothly and optimise the reliability of the tests and unidentified survey responses that the study aims to find. The proposed methodology as well as other considerations are discussed in this chapter. Discussing the methodology and research, the rationale for the chosen approach such sample size, sampling methods, data collection processes and the population of interest.

The two basic approaches to research methods are positivism and interpretivism. Positivism approach is based on the quantitative approach to get an overview of the society and to uncover social trends while interpretivism seeks to have an in-depth understanding of respondents and to gain an empathetic understanding of their actions. A qualitative method is used to analyse and perceive fact in order to establish an empirical view of what has been

experienced. The quantitative method is used as a theory or hypothesis and experiments are carried out to validate the idea. Myers (2009) points out that qualitative research is a thorough study of cultural and social phenomena, focusing on text, while quantitative research seeks to investigate the general trends across the population and focuses on numbers.

The research proposes to make use of the quantitative methods of research with a sample size of 100 participants to have a comprehensive knowledge of the impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance.

This type of analysis is more suitable for this research as it enables the researcher address the research question of whether the two variables have an impact on the performance of SMEs. Previous studies have shown that training and development has an impact on entrepreneur's performance therefore this method will help to validate whether the previous research was correct or wrong.

3.11 Data collection

The study relates to previous research on the impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance and the two sources of collection of data are primary and secondary data. The primary data which includes questionnaires that provides evidence of the fact that may agree or disagree with existing studies and the secondary data includes the previous works of other researchers; Google scholar, Journals, Books and other useful information from business bulletins.

3.12 Survey method

Questionnaires was prepared to gather information from a particular group of people within a short period of time. For the purpose of this research, questionnaire was used. Brace (2008) defined a questionnaire to be a multiple-choice based question designed to review and derive answers from a particular set of participants. The questionnaire will enable participants to give feedback on the questions so as to get a precise answer for the study. The questionnaire will contain three parts. Part I will include demographic information, part II aims at measuring training and development of entrepreneurs and part III focuses on the performance of SMEs. The use of Microsoft forms for distribution of the questionnaires. Saunders et al (2009) suggested the use of questionnaires to be the most preferred process of collate data for

testing the relationships of variables, as a support for testing hypothesis and measuring the outcomes for informal analysis.

3.13 Validity and Reliability of the Instrument

The questionnaire used was subjected to the reliability test and it was found that the entrepreneurship training scale had a Cronbach's alpha reliability of 0.778, while the business performance scale had a reliability coefficient of 0.288. The discriminant validity of the scale indicates that the entrepreneurship training scale and business performance scale had a value of -.263, which shows that the scale did not converge and that they are measuring what they purpose to measure.

3.14 Method of Data Analysis

The use of SPSS software (software package used for statistical analysis) was used to analyse the data gathered from the participants, classified, presented in tables as well as charts and analysed using the software.

3.15 Research Population and Sample Population

The population of the study of interest includes SMEs in Ireland and was on a nonprobability sampling technique. According to Saunders et al (2009), a non-probability method allows for subjective judgement. This is hinges on the feelings, believe and perception of the survey respondent, the subjective judgement of the survey respondents will aid in answering the research question. The non-probability technique will involve the use of convenience sampling, snowball sampling and judgmental sampling.

The convenience sampling was selected because of the easy availability of participants, judgmental sampling was selected because of the selected group of people which are the owners of SMEs and snowball sampling was selected because it allows for voluntary participation.

Chapter 4 - Analysis and findings

4.0 Introduction

This chapter presents the results of the hypotheses and research questions and the relevant demographic factors in charts and table as shown below.

4.1 Presentation of Results

The result of the statistical test reviews each variable presented in the study in relation to the performance of SMEs. This analysis addresses the impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance in Dublin, Ireland.

4.2 Analysis of Respondents' Demographic characteristics

S/N	Variable	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
1	single	31	62.0	62.0
2	married	14	28.0	90.0
3	divorced	2	4.0	94.0
4	widowed	3	6.0	100.0
	Total	50	100.0	

Table 4.1: Marital Status of the Respondents

Table 4.1 indicates the marital status of the respondents, with single having highest representation of 31 (62%), followed by the married with 14 (28%) and the least participants was divorced with 2 (4%). This is shown further in chart 1 below:

Chart 1: Marital Status of the Respondents



 Table 4.2: Age of the Respondents

S/N	Variable	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
1	under 25	7	14.0	14.0
2	26-40	31	62.0	76.0
3	41-50	8	16.0	92.0
4	51 above	4	8.0	100.0
	Total	50	100.0	

Table 4.2 shows the respondents by age, with the highest repondents being 26-40 years 31 (62%), followed 41-50 years, 8 (16%), while the least respondents was 51 years and above, 4 (8%). This is depicted further as shown in chart 2 below:
Chart 2: Age of the Respondents



 Table 4.3: Representation by Gender

S/N	Variable	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent		
1	male	30	60.0	60.0		
2	female	20	40.0	100.0		
	Total	50	100.0			

Table 4.3 shows the representation of the participants by gender, with male being the highest with 30 (60%), followed by female with 20 (40%). This is illustrated further in chart 3 below:

Chart 3: Representation by Gender



4.3 Analysis of Research Questions:

Research Question One: What is the most attained educational level of entrepreneurs of

SMEs?

variables	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
secondary	5	10.0	10.0
vocational/tech	4	8.0	18.0
college	24	48.0	66.0
masters	15	30.0	96.0
professional/doctora	2	4.0	100.0
te			
Total	50	100.0	

 Table 4.4 Showing the Most attained educational level of Entrepreneurs of SME Operators

Table 4.4 Shows that the college graduates among the SMEs entrepreneurs was 24 (48%), followed by masters with 15 (24%) while the least was professional/doctorate with 2 (4%).

This indicates therefore that the most attained educational level of education of operators was SMEs was college degree. This is further illustrated in chart 4 below:



Chart 4: Most attained educational level of Entrepreneur's of SME Operators

Research Question Two: What are the most used methods of training and development that have effects on the performance of SMEs?

Tables 4.5a&b: One Way ANOVA of the Most used Method of EntrepreneurshipTraining

	N	Mean	Std.	Std. Error			Minim	Maximum
			Deviation		Interval for		um	
					Mean			
					Lower	Upper		
					Bound	Bound		
coaching	1	4.0000	•				4.00	4.00
mentoring	10	5.2000	1.54919	.48990	4.0918	6.3082	3.00	8.00
formal classroom	6	6.1667	.75277	.30732	5.3767	6.9567	5.00	7.00
apprenticeship	8	5.2500	1.66905	.59010	3.8546	6.6454	3.00	8.00
Total	25	5.4000	1.44338	.28868	4.8042	5.9958	3.00	8.00

Table 4.5 shows that formal classroom (mean = 6.167, SD = 0.753) which is the highest in the series, followed by apprenticeship (mean = 5.250; SD = 1.669), followed by mentoring (mean = 5.20, SD = 1.549) and the least in the series is coaching (mean = 4.000, SD = 0.000). This indicates that the most used method of entrepreneurship training is formal classroom,

while the least used method of training is coaching. This further depicted in chart 5 below.



Chart 5: Most used Method of Entrepreneurship Training

Research Question Three: What is the view of SMEs Operators on entrepreneurial training?

Entrepreneurs belief that training will enable them to develop great capacity towards building sustainable relationship with customers; that training gives them more exposure to the workings and happenings in the industry; it gives them edge over the competitors; that it makes them to understand how to manage different tax options and that it gives them the exposure and knowledge they need to survive in the industry.

4.4 Hypothesis Testing

H1. Training and development of entrepreneurs have a significant relationship on the growth and performance of SMEs

H₂. Entrepreneur training methods have a significant impact on the performance of SMEs.

Hypothesis One: Training and development of entrepreneurs have a significant relationship on the growth and performance of SMEs

4.6: Pearson Product Moment Correlation (PPMC) Showing the Relationship between Entrepreneurship Training and Business Performance among SMEs Operators in Ireland

Variable	Mean	Std. Dev.	n	R	p value	Remark
	21.462	2 270				
Entrepreneurship Training	21.462	2.370				
			50	263	. 063	Not Sig.
Business Performance						
	5.420	1.38638				

Table 4.6 shows that there was no significant relationship between entrepreneurship training and business performance among SMEs operators in Ireland (r = -.263, n = 50 p >.05). The study further shows that there was an inverse relationship between entrepreneurship training and business performance. Therefore, the hypothesis is hereby rejected.

Hypothesis Two: Entrepreneur training methods have a significant impact on the performance of SMEs.

Table 4.7:Summary of Regression analysis showing the Effect of EntrepreneurshipTraining on Business Performance among SMEs Operators in Ireland

R	R Square			Adjusted	Crror of the					
				R Square	Estimat	e				
.263	.069			.030	1.39756					
ANOV A										
Model	Sum of	DF	Mean	F	Sig.	Remark				

Squares		Square			
3.470	1	3.470	1.777	.195	Not Sig.
46.876	24	1.953			
50.346	25				
	3.470 46.876	3.470 1 46.876 24	3.470 1 3.470 46.876 24 1.953	3.470 1 3.470 1.777 46.876 24 1.953	3.470 1 3.470 1.777 .195 46.876 24 1.953

Table 4.7 shows the effect of Entrepreneurship training methods on the performance of SMEs among SMEs in Ireland (R = .263 and R² = .069 and adjusted R² = .030). This implication of this is 6.9% of the variance were accounted for by two predictor variables. The significance of the contribution was tested at α = 0.05. The table 4.7 also shows that the analysis of variance for the regression yielded (F-ratio = 1.777; P> 0.05). This implies that the impact of the Entrepreneurship training methods on the performance of SMEs was not significant. The hypothesis is rejected. This is further demonstrated in chart 2 below:

Chart 2: Effect of Entrepreneurship Training on Business Performance among SMEs Operators in Ireland



4.5 Summary of Findings:

The following findings were made in the course of this study:

1. That college graduates among the SMEs entrepreneurs was 24 (48%), followed by masters with 15 (24%) while the least was professional/doctorate with 2 (4%). Therefore, the most attained educational level of education of operators was SMEs was college degree, while the least attained level of education was professional/doctorate.

2. It was found that formal classroom (mean = 6.167, SD = 0.753) which is the highest in the series, followed by apprenticeship (mean = 5.250; SD = 1.669), followed by mentoring (mean = 5.20, SD = 1.549) and the least in the series is coaching (mean = 4.000, SD = 0.000) . Therefore, most used method of entrepreneurship training is formal education, while the least used form of entrepreneurship training was coaching.

3. That there was no significant relationship between entrepreneurship training and business performance among SMEs operators in Ireland (r = -.263, n = 50 p >.05). This

implies that entrepreneurship training has no correlation or link with business performance. This is due to the current reality with regards to entrepreneurial training in Ireland.

4. That the effect of Entrepreneurship training methods on the performance of SMEs among SMEs in Ireland was (R = .263 and $R^2 = .069$ and adjusted $R^2 = .030$, F-ratio =1.777; P> 0.05). This implies that the combination of all forms of entrepreneurship training produced an insignificant effect of 6.9%.

5. Training will enable them to develop great capacity towards building sustainable relationship with customers; that training gives them more exposure to the workings and happenings in the industry; it gives them edge over the competitors.

Chapter 5 - Discussion, Conclusion and Recommendation

This section focused on the discussion of the various findings in this study, with the appropriate conclusion and recommendations made in line with the results of this study.

5.1 Discussion of Findings

5.1.1 Most Attained Level of Education of SME Entrepreneurs

It was found that the most attained level of education was majority of the participating entrepreneurs are college graduates. This is a good feat for the business world in Ireland, as more educated people are getting involved in businesses. This shows that most of the entrepreneurs are driven towards knowledge acquisition and intellectual empowerment as opined by Caroline and James (2013), who believe that education is a way by which individuals develop the needed knowledge and capacity for effective performance in their businesses. Effectiveness cannot be attained in business without the right knowledge and skills and this is what education gives. The increasing number of graduates in business is a welcome development and the reason for the increasing growth in the sector.

This calls for the need to embrace some level of education by the business owners and the concept of entrepreneurship should not be perceived as the business of the illiterates in the society. Embracing education is the key to getting out of the hitch of impossibility that often faces entrepreneurs. This is because education makes one to develop capacity for deep insight, towards understanding what seems difficult to others. Education is an eye opener to several opportunities that are embedded in one's area of business and also gives one courage, strength and confidence to diversify one's level of investment. Therefore, the power that education wields is unlimited.

5.1.2 Most used Method of Entrepreneurship Training

The study found that the most used method of training is formal classroom, followed by apprenticeship, mentoring and the least was coaching. This indicates that although there are several training methods that trainers often adopt, but formal method of training has been proven to be highly effective and efficient. Formal classroom is the process by which the acquisition of knowledge and skills with relation to understanding and analysing a broad range of societal problems in the classroom settings (Caroline and James (2013). This is because the aftermath of the training using formal education has produced substantial encouraging results on the businesses of the participants. This was corroborated by Hanti et al. (2008) who opines that formal training helps participants to be deeply involved in the process and thus develop their managerial capacity. Formal classroom as a form of training is a typical way of bringing out the best in the participants. It instils in them the skills, insight, tact and the needed capacity to maintain stability on their businesses.

Generally, the level of education is a broad section of the education that is an advancement from elementary to a more complicated learning experience, encompassing all fields that may occur at that particular stage of progress and the acquisition of an educational qualification means the successful completion of a course of study or a training programme.

The need to embrace formal education becomes important, as Rae (2010) opines that it is the way of ensuring that participants understand the concept of entrepreneurship, develop capacity for the creation of market potentials and being able to contribute hugely to the business world. Training is good, but formal training is fantastic, because it is a way of gaining the best knowledge that is able to turn one's business world around. There are lots of things to be learned and no one is a highland. Education is a continuous process and getting the right education is the key to having a successful business.

5.1.3 Relationship between Entrepreneurship Training and Business Performance

It was found that there was no significant but inverse relationship between entrepreneurship training and business performance. The implication of this result is that significant number of entrepreneurs do not belief in training as a veritable tool for transforming their businesses. This was in contrast to the position of Bernes et al (2016), who sees entrepreneurship training as a way of developing the relevant innovation required for transforming the business. Therefore, entrepreneurship training should be restructured to address the relevant problems affecting entrepreneurs in Ireland. This will change the perception of the majority of entrepreneurs with regards to entrepreneurs training. This finding was supported by Nabi et al. (2010) who opines that entrepreneurship training has not been able to produce substantial notable effect on the entrepreneurs. This shows that although there have been different entrepreneurship trainings organized by different organizations in Ireland, however, these trainings have not been producing the desired effects on the entrepreneurs and SMEs' performance to be specific.

The need to increase the willingness of entrepreneurs to get involved in training is nonnegotiable. It is a task that must be embraced by those who wish to leverage above the competitors. To gain competitive advantage and to do business better than others, entrepreneurship training is critical to business success. Lack of the required training that cuts across human life so long it adds values to the business is the reason for business failure. This was corroborated by Brandstatter (1997), who opines that some of the young entrepreneurs fail due to personality and other problems they could not handle; with adequate training on emotional intelligence and emotional stability as applies to entrepreneurs, will go a long way in helping these young entrepreneurs to remain stable in business. 5.1.4 Effect of Entrepreneurship training methods on the performance of SMEs among SMEs in Ireland

It was observed that entrepreneurship training makes a contribution of 6.9% to business performance of SMEs. This shows that entrepreneurship training has substantial effect on performance of businesses in Ireland. This was in line with the submission of Johnson, Kattuman and Conway (1996) who posit that well established businesses through increased training would enhance the growth of other small businesses. This is done through a symbiotic relationship, whereby the grown businesses would help lift up the upcoming ones through the creation of enlightenment programmes and how to grow businesses and the small businesses too will send some of their workforce for training by paying a stipend as training fee.

5.1.5 Perception of SMEs Operators on entrepreneurial training

Some of the entrepreneur's belief that training will enable them to develop great capacity towards building sustainable relationship with customers. For others, training gives them more exposure to the workings and happenings in the industry. It gives them edge over the competitors. It makes them to understand how to manage different tax options. Some of them belief that entrepreneurship training gives them the exposure and knowledge they need to survive in the industry. These positions were corroborated by Garavan and Barra (1994), who opines that training is an effective way of gaining entrepreneurial knowledge, skills and aptitude needed to perform a given task. Therefore, training helps in building the capacity of the SME operators across Ireland and beyond.

5.2 Conclusion

In view of the immense contribution of entrepreneurial training on performance of SMEs as shown in this study, it is important to know that in order to ensure best practices in business, that would be globally acknowledged, the need to embrace training of the SME operators becomes crucial. There cannot be business growth and development without adequate training of the workforce on how to best carry out the task. Failed businesses can come alive if the persons involved are trained on the basic skills and knowledge needed for the job.

To succeed in business demands prompt action at making sure that old things are done in a new way. Developing capacity for best practice is gotten through effective training strategy that would enliven a dying business. The revitalization of a dying business would increase the performance of SMEs and the entire economy in Ireland.

Training of different kinds should be embraced by the actors in the SMEs in Ireland because they are small and wouldn't be able to employ the various competent hands to take care of the different areas in business such as accounting area, technical area, marketing area and so on until they expand. This is because adequate entrepreneurial training would bring out the best in business owners however minute the capacity. Entrepreneurship training will give entrepreneurs the necessary confidence to act and run their businesses in line with the requirement of the regulatory body and become sustainable in business. The existence of a viable and vibrant entrepreneurship training institute that can address all the needed skills and knowledge deficits of the entrepreneurs would be a welcome development if given a pride of place.

The entrepreneurs' orientation with regards to training and development can be changed, by ensuring that the essential benefits of entrepreneurial training are communicated to the entrepreneurs in a simple and understandable form. There gainsaying the fact that entrepreneurs can be best if given the best of training they need. Therefore, for requisite SMEs' performance the need to embrace entrepreneurship training becomes vital and a necessity.

43

5.3 Recommendations

In view of the findings of this research, the following recommendations are made by the researcher:

1. That effective training strategy should be developed by the regulators of SMEs in Ireland. This will give SME owners to be in tune with the modern ways of doing business.

2. That good entrepreneurial training policy should be designed by the government of Ireland, to make it a compulsion for any prospective entrepreneurs to undergo a substantial certified training programme before permitted to start a business in the country.

3. That SME operators should see training as a way of making their businesses survive the competitive forces that may want to exit them from business. This is because, they will develop ability to sustain their business no matter the tension when adequate training is acquired.

4. The needed training facilities should be adequately provided by the relevant stakeholders at an affordable rate to the SMEs. This is to give every SME a level playing ground in accessing the training facilities.

5. That all the benefits of training should be communicated to the SMEs, to enable them to see the importance of undergoing training as much as possible.

5.4 Implications of the Study

This study is timely as it addressed the skills and knowledge deficit of the entrepreneurs among SMEs in Ireland. The need to optimize their skills level in order to meet up with the global standard of doing business is inevitable and therefore, this study has been able to contribute amply towards this. Several entrepreneurs in Ireland had hitherto had less belief in entrepreneurship training, their cognition has to be restructured so as to see the benefits of entrepreneurship training in their enterprise. The gap that has been created in literature over the years with regards to entrepreneurship training and SMEs' performance in Ireland has been bridged in this study.

5.5 Limitations of the Study

There was time constraint, because the researcher had no adequate time to properly collect the needed data for the research. The global pandemic of corona virus (COVID 19) has restricted the movement of the researcher to distribute enough questionnaire and engage the participants on a one-to-one interview session, thus limiting the collection of data to online questionnaire. There was gender inequality in the distribution of the participants. The contacts of the participants were difficult to get and some of them were not willing to participate in the study, thus reducing the number of the participants.

5.6 Suggestion for Further Studies

In view of the limitations of this study, the researcher therefore, suggests that further studies be conducted when all the identified factors must have been taken care of and the global pandemic must have ended.

Appendices

impact of training and development of entrepreneurs on SMEs performance in Ireland



Figure 1 Showing poster of ENT training and SME performance

THE ST. PARS

(BEMS 2019). Atlantis Press.

Survey link below:

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=5-9v4tcffECFDpv8ujMONWUvzp0Ql-BEu-ZJXzoLoehUOEdWWUhIUklRREZXRjlHTVFZTDZDRlA4Vi4u

References

Aderemi Ayinla Alarape, (2007). Entrepreneurship programs, operational efficiency and growth of small businesses. Journal of Enterprising Communities: People and Places in the Global Economy, 1(3), 222 – 239.

Ahmad, H. (2010). Personality traits among entrepreneurial and professional CEOs in SMEs, International Business Management, 5(9), 203-213.

Ajzen, I. (1991), "The Theory of Planned Behavior", Organizational Behavior and Human Decision Processes, 50 (2), 179-211.

Ajzen, I., Fishbein, M. (1973), "Attitudinal and normative variables as predictors of specific behaviour", Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 27(1), 41-57.

Amatori, F. (2006). Entrepreneurship in Theory and History. Business History Review, 80 (3), pp. 615-617.

Aremu, M. A., and Adeyemi, S., (2011). Small and medium scale enterprises a s survival strategy for employement generation in Nigeria. Journal of sustainable development. 4(1), 200-206.

Arend, R.J., Sarooghi, H., and Burkemper, A., (2015). Effectuation as ineffectual? Applying the theory assessment framework to a proposed new theory of entrepreneurship, Academy of Management review, 40(4), 630-651.

Arzeni S. (2015) Youth entrepreneurship support in Poland. Rapid policy assessment of inclusive entrepreneurship policies and programmes, centre for entrepreneurship, SMEs, tourism and local development OECD working paper.

ASHE (2009), ASHE higher education report, entrepreneurial domains, 34(5) 63-73. Asia. London: Routledge.

Bakotic, D. and Kruzic, D. (2010), Students' perceptions and intentions towards entrepreneurship: the empirical findings from Croatia, The Business Review, 14(2), 209-215.

Blackburn, R. A., Hart, M., & Wainwright, T. (2013). Small Business Performance: Busi-

ness, Strategy and Owner-Manager Characteristics. Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development, 20, pages 8-27.

Brandstatter, H. (1997) Becoming an entrepreneur - a question of personality structure? Journal of Economic Psychology. Vol. 18, pages 157-177.

Brandstatter, H., G. Kette, and J. Sageder (1983) "Expectations, attributions, and behavior inbargaining with liked and disliked partners." In R. Tietz (Ed.) Aspiration Levels in Bargaining and Economic Decision Making. Berlin: Springer-Verlag

Bridge, S., O'Neill, K., & Cromie, S. (2003). Understanding Enterprise, Entrepreneurship and small business. 2nd ed. New York: Palgrave Macmillan, Basingstoke.

Bygrave, W. D. (1989), "The entrepreneurship paradigm (I): a philosophical look at its research methodologies", Entrepreneurship: Theory and Practice, 14, pages 7-26.

Clark, S. (1997). Reasons for business failure come in three broad groups," Scott Clark, Puget Sound Business Journal.

Consortium for Entrepreneurship Education (2008). Entrepreneurship everywhere: The case for entrepreneurship education. Columby, USA.

Cook, P. and Nixon, F., (2000) Finance and Medium Sized Enterprise Development, IDPM.

Creswell, John W. 2013. Qualitative Inquiry and Research Design: Choosing Among Five Approaches. Third edition. Washington DC: Sage.

David W. Moore (2005); Majority of Americans Want to Start Own Business; The lure of entrepreneurship is especially felt among young men.

Denzin, N. K., & Lincoln, Y. S. (1994). Handbook of qualitative research. Thousand Oaks, CA: SAGE.

Dewey, J. (1963). Experience and Education. The Kappa Delta Pi Lecture Series. New York Macmillian.

Dudwick, N., Kuehnast, K., Jones, V. N., and Woolcock, M. (2006) Analyzing Social Capital in Context: A Guide to Using Qualitative Methods and Data, World Bank Institute, Washington.

Edelman, L., Manolova, T.; Brush, B. (2008), "Entrepreneurship education: correspondence between practices of nascent entrepreneurs and textbook prescriptions for success", Academy of Management Learning & Education, 7(1), 56–70.

Fayolle, A. (2005), "Evaluation of entrepreneurship education: behaviour performing or intention increasing", International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Small Business, 2 (1), 89-98.

Fayolle, A., and P. Kyrö (2008), The Dynamics between Entrepreneurship, Environment and Education, European Research in Entrepreneurship series, Cheltenham, UK and Northampton, MA, USA: Edward Elgar.

Florin, J., Karri, R.; Rossiter, N. (2007), "Fostering Entrepreneurial drive in business education: an attitudinal approach", Journal of Management Education, 31 (1), 17-42.

Gagoitseope, P.K. & Pansiri, J, (2012), Evaluation of Critical Success Factors for Developing Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises in Botswana. Journal of African Business, 13(1), page 51-60.

Garavan, T. N. and Barra, O. C., (1994), "Entrepreneurship education and training programmes: a review and evaluation - Part I', Journal of European Industrial Training, 18(8), pp 3-10.

Ghauri P, Gronhaug K (2005). Research methods in business studies –A practical guide. 3rd edition. Prentice Hall.

Hans Landström, 2005. "Pioneers in Entrepreneurship and Small Business Research," International Studies in Entrepreneurship, Springer, number 978-0-387-23633-9.

Hanti, S. Kairisto-Metanen, L. Kallio-Gerlander, J, Rantanen, H. (2008). IdentifyingEntrepreneurial Competences in Three Different Cross-disciplinary Environments, in Ingle,S. Neuvonen-Rauhala, M (Eds) Promoting Entrepreneurship by Universities. The

proceedings of the second international FINPIN 2008 conference, Hameenlinna, Finland, April 20-22, pp. 299-306 in Taatila, V.P. (2010) Learning Entrepreneurship in Higher Education, Education and Training, Vol 52, No. 1, pp. 48-61.

Henry, C. Hill, F.; Leitch, C. (2005), "Entrepreneurship education and training: can entrepreneurship be taught? Part I", Education & Training, 47(2/3), 98-111.

Hisrich, R. D.; Peters, M. P. (1998), Entrepreneurship, 4th edition, Irwin McGraw-Hill, Boston, MA.

Ho, T. S. and Koh, H. C. (1992), "Differences in psychological characteristics between entrepreneurially inclined and non-entrepreneurially inclined accounting graduates in Singapore", Entrepreneurship, Innovation and Change: An International Journal, 1, 243-54.

Ho, Y., Low, P. and Wong, P., (2014). Do University entrepreneurship programmes influence students' entrepreneurial behavior? An empirical analysis of university students in Singapore, innovative pathways for university entrepreneurship in the 21st century advances in the study of entrepreneurship, innovation and economic growth. 24, pp 65-87.

Hunt, I. and Hogan, D. (2005). Moving Small Companies Towards Next Generation Employability, Community of Practice (COP) Report, COP3.

Ian Brace (2008). How to Plan, Structure and Write Survey Material for Effective Market Research.

Joan Ernst Van Aken (2005). Management Research as a Design Science: Articulating the Research Products of Mode 2 Knowledge Production in Management.

Jusoh, R., Ziyae, B., Asimiran, S. and Kadir, S. A. (2011), Entrepreneur training needs analysis: implications on the entrepreneurial skills needed for successful entrepreneurs, The International Business & Economics Research Journal, 10(1): 143-148.

Kalleberg, A. L. & Leicht, K. T. (1991) Gender and organizational determinants of small business survival and success. Academy of Management Journal. Vol. 34, No.1, 136-161.

Kirby, D. (2004), "Entrepreneurship education: can business schools meet the challenge?", Education + training, 46 (8/9): 510-512.

Koh, H.C. (1996), "Testing hypotheses of entrepreneurial characteristics – a study of Hong Kong MBA students", Journal of Managerial Psychology, Vol. 11 No. 3, pp. 12-25

Kolvereid, L. (1996), "Prediction of employment status choice intentions", Entrepreneurship Theory and Practice, 21, 47-57.

Kuratko, D. F. (2005). The Emergence of Entrepreneurship Education Development, Trends, and Challenges. Entrepreneurship Theory & Practice, 29, pages 577-598.

Lall, S. and G. Wignaraja. (1998). Mauritius: Dynamising Export Competitiveness. In. London:

Levie, J., & Autio, E. (2008). A theoretical grounding and test of the GEM model. Small Business

Lewis A Paul, Jr. (2003). Small Business: Preventing Failure - Promoting Success," the Wichita State University, Small Business Development Center.

Li, W. (2006), "Entrepreneurial intention among international students: testing a model of entrepreneurial intention", USASBE Small Business Advancent National Center, Arkansas: University of Central Arkansas.

Lussier, Robert N. (1996). Reasons Why Small Businesses Fail: And How to Avoid Failure. Availableat: "http://www.alliedacademies.org/archive/aej/ee12/paper2.html">http://www.allie dacademies.org/archive/aej/ee1-2/paper2.html. (Accessed on 10th May 2020).

Mahmood, M. Labour productivity and employment in Australian manufacturing SMEs. Int. Entrep. Manag. J. 2008, 4, 51–62.

Mehralizadeh, Y. and Sajady, S. H., (2005). Paper at European conference on educational research, University College Ireland. 7-10.

Murray, T. A. and White, A. (1986), Education for Enterprise - An Irish Perspective, National Council for Education Awards and the Industrial Development Authority of Ireland, Ireland.

Myers, M. D. (2009). Qualitative research in business & management. Sage Publications Ltd.

Nabi, G., Holden, R. and Walmsley, A. (2010). Entrepreneurial intentions among students: towards a re-focused research agenda, Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development, 17(4), pages 537-551.

Neal R. Haddaway, Claes Bernes, Bengt-Gunnar Jonsson & Katarina Hedlund (2016). The benefits of systematic mapping to evidence-based environmental management.

Neck, H.M., and Greene, P.G., (2011), Entrepreneurship education: Known worlds and new frontiers. Journal of Small Business Management, 49 (2011), pp. 55-70.

Neuman, W. L. (2006), Social Research Methods: Qualitative and Quantitative Approaches 6th Edition, Pearson International Edition, USA.

Okundaye, Kessington, Fan Susan K. & Dwyer, Rocky J. (2019) "Impact of information and communication technology in Nigerian small- to medium-sized enterprises", Journal of Economics, Finance and Administrative Science, Available at https://doi.org/10.1108/JEFAS-08-2018-0086.

OECD (2015), Entrepreneurship at a Glance 2015, OECD Publishing, Paris. http://dx.doi.org/10.1787/entrepreneur_aag-2015-en.

Omerzel, G. D., Kusce, I., (2013). The influence of personal and environmental factors on entrepreneur's performance. Kybernetes 42(6), 906-927.

Oosterbeek, H., van Praag, M., Ijsselstein, A. (2010). The impact of entrepreneurship education on entrepreneurship skills and motivation. European Economic Review, 54, 442–454.

Paço, A., Ferreira, J., Raposo, M., Rodrigues, R. and Dinis, A. (2011b) "Behaviours and entrepreneurial intention: empirical findings about secondary students", Journal of International Entrepreneurship, 9(1): 20-38. paper No.14.

Perks, S. & Smith, E.E. (2006). Investigating training interventions required for upgrading black micro entrepreneurial skills: An empirical study. Paper presented at the Eighteenth Annual Conference of the Southern Africa Institute for Management Scientists, Stellenbosch University, Stellenbosch, 13–15 September.

Peterman, N. E.; Kennedy, J. (2003), "Enterprise education influencing students' perceptions of entrepreneurship", Entrepreneurship Theory and Practice, Winter, 129-144.

Rae, D. (2010), Universities and enterprise education: responding to the challenges of the new era, Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development, 17(4): 591-606.

Rahayu, R. and Day, J. (2017), "Determinant factors of e-commerce adoption by SMEs in developing country: evidence from Indonesia", Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences, Vol. 195, pp. 142-150, doi: 10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.06.423.

Reynolds, P. D., & and Miller, B., (1992). New firm gestation: Conception, birth and implication for research. Journal of business venturing. 795), 405-418.

Ricardo Gouveia Rodrigues, Anabela Dinis, Arminda do Paço, João Ferreira and Mário Raposo (2012),

Robinson, P. B., Stimpson, D. V., Huefner, J. C.; Hunt, H. K. (1991), "An attitude approach to the prediction of entrepreneurship", Entrepreneurship: Theory and Practice, 15, 13-31.

Rodrigues, R., Raposo, M., Ferreira, J. and Paço, A. (2010) "Entrepreneurship education and the propensity for business creation: testing a structural model", International Journal of Entrepreneurship and Small Business, 9(1):58-73.

Rogers, W. and Wright, M. (1998) Measuring Organizational Performance in Strategic Human Resource Management: Problems, Prospects, and Performance Information Markets. Human Resource Management Review, 8, pages 311-331.

Roomi, Muhammad Azam. Harrison, Pegram. Beaumont-Kerridge, John. (2009). Womenowned small and medium enterprises in England: analysis of factors influencing the growth process.

Saunders, M., Lewis, P. and Thornhill, A. (2009) Research Methods for Business Students. Pearson, New York.

Small Business Growth in the Short Run Peter Johnson, Cheryl Conway and Paul Kattuman Small Business Economics Vol. 12, No. 2 (Mar., 1999), pp. 103-112 Souitaris, V., Zerbinati, S.; Al-Laham, A. (2007), "Do entrepreneurship programmes raise entrepreneurial intention of science and engineering students? The effect of learning, inspiration and resources", Journal of Business Venturing, 22(4), 566-591.

Storey, D. J. and Westhead, P. (1994). Management Development in Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises with Growth Potential. London: Confederation of British Industry.

Sullivan, T. A., Elizabeth, W., and Jay, W., (1998). Financial difficulties of small businesses and reasons for their failure, Prepared for the Small Business Administration Contract # SBA-95-0403, Business Bankruptcy Project, Townes Hall, The University of Texas at Austin, Austin, TX 78705, 512-471-7404.

Thurik, R, and Weneekers, S (1999). A Note on Entrepreneurship, Small Business and Economic Growth, Centre for Advanced Small Business Economics, ERIM Report Series reference number, ERS-2001-60-STR, Faculty of Economics, Erasmus University Rotterdam, The Netherlands.

Van Maanen, J. 1998. Different strokes: Qualitative research in the Administrative Science Quarterly from 1956 to 1996. In J. Van Maanen (Ed.), Qualitative studies of organizations: ix–xxxii. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.

Verplanken B, Aarts H, van Knippenberg A & Moonen A (1998) Habit versus planned behavior: A field experiment. British Journal of Social Psychology 37: pp 111-128.

Westhead, P. (1998). Factors Associated with The Provision of Job-Related Formal Training By Employers. International Journal of Entrepreneurial Behavior and Research. 4(3), pp 187-216.

Westhead, P., McWlwee, G., and Wright M., (2011) Entrepreneurship: prospective and cases. Essex: Pearson education Ltd.

Wood, M. S. (2011), A process model of academic entrepreneurship, Business Horizons, 54(2):153-161.

Zhou, Q., & Gao, S. (2019). An Empirical Study on the Relationship between Entrepreneurial Resources and Entrepreneurial Competence. In 1st International Conference on Business, Economics, Management Science (BEMS 2019). Atlantis Press.

Rasha, A. (2004). Gallup: Does it pay to be your own boss? Available at: https://news.gallup.com/poll/13030/does-pay-your-own-boss.aspx